ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COVMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 3, 2007
3:37 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Donny O son, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas
Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh, Vice Chair
Senat or Thonmas WAgoner

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 1
"An Act relating to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; and providing for
an effective date."

MOVED SB 1 OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 1

SHORT TITLE: | NCREASE AMI OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) W LKEN

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07
01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (S) SED, CRA, FIN

02/ 09/ 07 (S) SED AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 09/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 07 (S) M NUTE( SED)

03/ 28/ 07 (S) SED RPT  2DP 3NR

03/ 28/ 07 (S) DP: WLKEN, DAVIS

03/ 28/ 07 (S) NR. STEVENS, HUGG NS, OLSON

03/ 28/ 07 (S) SED AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 28/ 07 (S) Moved SB 1 Qut of Committee

03/ 28/ 07 (S) M NUTE( SED)

04/ 03/ 07 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR GARY W LKEN

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2007



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 1 as sponsor.

CARL RCSE, Executive Director

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

MARY FRANCI S, Executive Director

Al aska Associ ation of School Adm nistrators
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

MELODY DOUGLAS, Chief Financial Oficer

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

DEBRA MULLI NS, Menber

Board of Education

Ni ki ski, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

G NNY ESPENSHADE
Homer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

DEBRA Kl RK, Member

Parent Teacher Associ ation (PTA)

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

STAN LUJAN, Superi ntendent

Nonme Public School s

Nonme, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

LYDI A GARCI A, InterimExecutive Director

Nat i onal Education Associ ation- Al aska ( NEA- Al aska)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

KATHY CARROW Presi dent

Kenai Peni nsul a Educati onal Associ ation
Kenai, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of SB 1.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2-

Apri |

3, 2007



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR DONNY OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 3:37:02 PM
Senators O son, Stevens, and Thomas were present at the call to
order. Senators Kookesh and WAagoner were excused.

SB  1-1 NCREASE AMI OF BASE STUDENT ALLOCATI ON

SENATOR GARY W LKEN, Al aska State Legislature, said, since 1998,
the K-12 public school funding forrmula has distributed state
education dollars based on a per-student allocation [BSA]. SB 1
increases this allocation by $430, establishing a per-student
total of $5,810. SB 1 recognizes that day-to-day educational
costs continue to increase, causing a financial strain on the
school budgets in all 53 school districts. The eight percent
proposed increase will help mtigate these rising cost, allow ng
| ocal school boards to direct nore education dollars into the
classroom This |legislation does not address the major cost
i ncreases facing each school district this year. The rise in TRS
is over $200 million statewide. To cover that increase, the
allocation will go up $1,000 per student. An alternative bil
wi || address the other.

SENATOR W LKEN said SB 1 covers inflation and provides funds to
hel p reduce class size. The fiscal note is about $88.9 mllion

The inflation rate in Anchorage was about 4.2 percent for the
first half of 2006, so he used that and added another 2 percent.
It takes care of inflation, but there are rising costs of all
sorts. Last year the amount was about $145 million with $90
mllion of it for the classroom and the rest for PERS and TRS

He decided to do the sanme this year. A lot of school districts
were very appreciative last year, and they reduced class size
and brought back prograns and personnel. The state has a surplus
of $1.3 billion. “Let’s put it to where we all canpaigned and
say it’s one of our top priorities.”

SENATOR WLKEN referred to a chart showing that education
funding has increased 47 percent since 1999, and it includes
PERS and TRS. This year there are 129,900 students in Al aska,
fewer than in 1999.

3:42:49 PM

SENATOR WLKEN said there is double digit growh in the student
dollar, and Alaska 1is educating about 2.5 percent fewer
students. He said the bill won't pass but it’'s a nunber to talk

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2007



about, and it will make people confortable with the $90 nmillion
going to the classroom He expects the school districts to put
it to good use with |ower class sizes and adding vital services.

3:44: 25 PM
SENATOR THOMAS asked about the inflation rate.

SENATOR W LKEN said a Departnment of Labor analyst calculated it.
The actual CPI for Anchorage for fy06 was 3.2 percent.

SENATOR THOVAS said the bill doubles it, taking two years into
consi derati on.

SENATOR W LKEN said the nunber gets footballed all over the
place at the end. “W're not far from where we were |ast year;
let’s just do what we did last year and we certainly have as
much noney in the bank, if not nore.”

3:46: 06 PM
CHAIR OLSON asked if the ISER [Institute of Social and Econom c
Research] cost-differential study is incorporated into the bill.

SENATOR WLKEN said cost differentials have no place in the
bill. The only way the legislature can get at the public
education fund is with the student dollar. He said it doesn’t
touch the district cost factors, but it runs the student dollar
t hrough the foundati on.

CHAI R OLSON asked about the PERS and TRS issue and about keeping
it within the BSA or outside the allocation.

SENATOR WLKEN said the nunber is so large this year that the
student dollar would have to be increased by $1,000. As the PERS
and TRS nonster gets taned, people will lose track of that if it
is put in the student dollar. PERS and TRS should be paid with a
check that doesn’t go through the student dollar.

3:48: 11 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked, “So, the general thought process is to put it
out si de the base student allocation?” Senator W] ken concurred.

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Al aska Association of School
Boards, said his association has six priorities. The largest is
the retirement issue and the second is the BSA, “and we adopted
the figure of [$5,810].” He said he would like to see SB 1 nove
today. O great concern for equity is the district cost factors
that haven't been revisited for a long tinme. “Intensive needs”

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2007



is a large issue for the association, he said. There has been
testinmony that “currently we're at five tinmes the BSA. W have
testi nony showi ng that expenses are anywhere from eight to ten
times the BSA, so intensive needs is a critical issue for sone
of our larger school districts.” Vocational education and work
force developnent are others that are nentioned in the 20
percent block grant, “but we really don’'t have the capacity to
address it because that block grant is taken up conpletely by
speci al education. And a bi-product of that is that within that
20 percent block grant you ve got special education, bilingua

educati on, and vocati onal educati on. Wth the state of
immgration in Anerica today, bilingual education is really
difficult for us to address. Most of our efforts are comng from
general funds, so there is a lot of pressure on the general

fund.” Another concern is for early or forward funding. He wants
investnment into the education fund to build up enough noney to
forward fund. He said the association supports SB 1 and wants it
noved to the finance conmittee where sone of the other issues in
his testinony can be addressed.

3:50: 37 PM

SENATOR THOVAS said a recent poll shows that the gasline ranks
nunber one because it pays for everything, and nunber two is K
t hough 12 education. He said he has |ooked at the funding, and
it anpbunts to a lack of funding. “Wat can we do because there
seens to be little novenent towards actually fully funding
education..not only in K through 12, but pre-schooling and higher
education?” He asked M. Rose how the |egislature and governor
shoul d fund education, because the resource noney is not going
to cover it, and it is only declining. Revenue projections
decline for 2010. He asked for suggestions.

3:52:15 PM

MR. ROSE said he just laid out six buckets and there is not
enough water to fill them all. Retirenment liability |oons huge
for the future. The way the schools are funded is through the
BSA, “so that’s a critical issue.” He spoke of reviewing the
cost differential with two studies, which hasn’'t been revisited,
“so it’s been eight years since that was put in place.” If there

were any disparities, they have been exacerbated by now, he
added. It threatens the integrity of the foundation fornula, he
opined. He said the issue of “intensive needs” has cone along
recently, and the costs are huge. There isn’t enough noney to
address all the needs, so the legislature will set priorities,
“and | think many of the things |’ve just nentioned here are
going to receive sonme consideration, but | don’t think we have
enough noney to do it all.”

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2007



3:53:52 PM

MARY FRANCI S, Executive Director, Al aska Association of Schoo
Adm nistrators, said her association supports the increase to
the BSA. Her nenbers are superintendents, principals, and school
finance of ficers, and t hey al so support “t he ot her
‘addressnents’ that have been previously nentioned.” She added
that the association supports a long-term fiscal plan that
i ncl udes sources of financing other than declining gas revenues
to support education. She urged the commttee to nove the bill.

3:55:10 PM
MELODY DOQUGLAS, Chief Financial Oficer, Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, said, “Wre in support of any additional

funding comng to schools.” The increase to her budget by SB 1
would be $6 mllion, and that would allow reinstating the
staffing formula to the current year. In the budget process she
ended up increasing class sizes by four students per class. “You
can imagine how unpal atable that situation is.” She said her
board approved the prelimnary budget last night, “and we are
nmovi ng our budget with an increase to our class sizes on to our
bor ough assenbly.” She said she supported the previous coments
and wants the bill noved to finance commttee to tal k about full
i npl enentation of the I1SER district <cost factors and a
reproduci ble nethod for wupdating the district cost factors
periodically as outlined in SB 36. The PERS and TRS issues have
been well stated. The Kenai Peninsula School District has been a
good steward of educational funding and has closed one school
with another slated for closing. She said she has not heard of
any other school district in Alaska trying to close schools, “so
we are very well aware that we are over capacity and we're
wor ki ng to address that matter.”

3:57.:37 PM

SENATOR STEVENS said her district doesn't fair well because of
the area cost differential. He asked her to conpare her district
to Anchorage’'s district, and noted she has schools that are off
the road system He asked about the | oss of students.

M5. DOUGLAS said the district has realized an ongoing two
percent decline in enrollment for the last ten years. It has
created a significant challenge. She said the in-place district
cost factor is 1.004, although they are discussing maintaining
the one-quarter inplenentation of ISER that was enacted by the
| egi slature for this year. Anchorage is at 1.000. Kenai has four
schools that are off the road system “They are, quite frankly,
on par with nearly all of our totally renmote rural schools in

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2007



Al aska.” Because the district cost factor has not been adjusted
as nmandated by SB 36, “we feel that we have been harned
significantly and we’'re |ooking for that matter to be addressed
by the legislature this year.”

4:00: 10 PM
SENATOR THOVAS asked if other things need to be adjusted.

M5. DOUGLAS listed retirement issues, the district cost factor

i ntensi ve needs, vocational education, the bilingual program
and pupil transportation costs. They will transfer approximtely
$500, 000 to operate the pupil transportation program she said.

DEBRA MULLI NS, Menber, Board of Education, Nikiski, said she is
speaking for herself. She asked the conmmttee to support SB 1
and take the increase in the BSA into consideration. The
financial situation on the Kenai Peninsula has been suffering
for years. It is a far-flung school district, but it has “quite
a status with regards to the state of education of our students
anongst school districts in the state.” She said she is proud to
represent the schools in her district, especially in N kiski.
Her three children came from N kiski schools and are quite
successful. She said she would like to continue to see the
students’ progress, and it concerns her to see the prograns
dismantl ed. The boost in the BSA could maintain the current
program she stated. Another boost mght reestablish further
progranms. She encouraged the conmittee to pass SB 1

4:03:51 PM
G NNY ESPENSHADE, Homer, said she fully supports any increase in
the BSA to help with class size and the prograns that have been

lost, Ilike auto nechanics and foreign |anguage. For sone
students it 1is too late to recapture those opportunities.
I ncreasing the BSA nakes it easier to be fair to districts, |ike

hers, that have been shortchanged for so many years, and it can
be done w thout inpacting other districts.

4: 04: 58 PM
CHAIR OLSON asked if she has children in the school s.

M5. ESPENSHADE sai d she has a senior at Honer Hi gh School .

SENATOR STEVENS said he hopes she wll continue to be an
advocate for schools even when her children | eave the system

DEBRA KI RK, Menber, PTA, said her kids entered the school system
when state funding declined. She has watched the prograns being

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2007



pulled away. There is a limted |earning program and she thinks
that extended learning is essential. Al Al askans have a vested
interest and “our future will only be as good as our children’s
education.” She said counselor and nurse tinmes were cut back.
The school hasn’t had an elenentary nusic program for the |ast
five years. “For sonme reason our noney got put elsewhere.” She
said she is on the arts curriculum comrittee, and the arts

progranms are not a frill and have been denied to the students.
4:08: 14 PM

STAN LUJAN, Superintendent, None Public Schools, said he
supports the bill. The state needs to feed nore noney into the

[ BSA], other than just raising it. “By spending down our TRS and
our [PERS] down to percents that could pour nore noney back into
t he student-based assessnents--the allocations that we have—+s
going to be really inportant, because that’s two ways we can
feed noney back into the [BSA].” The cost of living--the |SER--
needs to be addressed for Nonme and all rural comunities.
Shi ppi ng costs have doubled due to fuel costs. It depletes the
teacher core. He wants teachers trained in order to increase
student achi evenent and reduce student/teacher ratios. Wth TRS
costs going up, “we want to keep our teachers |onger and | onger,

but that is costly to us.” To inprove teacher quality, those
teachers should stay. “W used to be top salary across the
nation, and now we're down anywhere from 10 percent to 50
percent ... if you conpare salary schedules.” He added, “W’ve

been working hard at busting our budget to get our teachers up
to the 40'", 50'" percentile so at |east we’re appeal ing enough to
new recruits.” That means nore noney has to go into TRS, which
takes funds from teacher training. It is a quandary on how to
i ncrease the academc quality of the progranms, especially in the
bush. It needs a conbination of raising the |ISER increasing the
student allocation, buying dowmn PERS and TRS, and that’s only a
begi nning. There could be sone conprom se so everyone W ns.

CHAIR OLSON asked what M. Lujan sees happening in a year, in
five years, and in ten years to attract teachers.

MR. LUJAN said a lot of people considering nmoving to None or
Di | lingham base decisions on the quality of the schools. He
spoke of recruiting people to work at the hospital, and “we have
to provide pre-engineering prograns, and pre-calculus prograns
and an ROTC program and art, and nusic, and those kinds of
things, because if we don't, | can't attract people to our
community.” He said people mght cone up without their famly
for only a year or two, and the tax base declines. It becones a

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2007



dom no effect. The nunicipality is stretched for funds because
of lack of revenue sharing. It becones a tug of war, he said.

4:14: 00 PM

LYDIA GARCIA, Executive Director, NEA-Al aska, Anchorage, said
the BSA increase is good. NEA-Alaska is happy about the bill
but would like to see an increase to [$5,953]. The state has
about 132,000 students in K-12 public schools, and the BSA is
$5,380 per student, which costs $932 nillion annually. The
inflation rate is calculated at 3 percent annually, she said
which neans $29 nillion to address the FY0O8 inflation costs.

Every dollar increased to the BSA costs about $208,000. “In
rough terms, 1 million produces a $5.00 increase to the BSA’” She
noted that $1.00 on the price per barrel of «crude vyields
approximately $60 mllion in revenue for the general fund. The

education funding gap created by inflation from 1983 to 2002 is
estimated at $600 million. To fund just one seventh of the gap
would require $115 nmillion or a BSA of $5,953—an increase of
$573. It is not realistic to fill the gap of two decades in just
one year. If every year inflation and retirenent obligations are
covered, and $85 nillion is added, by the year 2014 Al aska's
schools will be back up to adequate funding |l evels, she said. It
is about the future of the educators and students. She agrees
with M. Lujan’s testinony. Adequate funding |leads to class size
reduction, nore individual attention, safe schools, early
intervention, materials, vocational training, and technol ogy.

4:18: 34 PM
CHAI R OLSON said Al aska has an alarm ng 30 percent dropout rate,
and he asked how that woul d be affected by raising the BSA.

M5. GARCIA said that anount of funding would allow the
institutions to provide better resources and nore individual
attention. That provides better potential for success.

CHAI R OLSON asked about studies fromother parts of the country.
M5. GARCI A said each state has uni que chal | enges.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if curriculum changes have an inpact on
retaining students.

M5. GARCI A said nore noney, time, and staff would provide closer

attention and greater curriculum which would greatly inpact
student performance and success in the |earning environnment.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- April 3, 2007



SENATOR THOVAS asked if funding from different agencies for
vocational education will be helpful to identify students and
give them the opportunity to pursue sonething that is nore to
their interest than the traditional curricul um

4.:21:12 PM

M5. GARCIA said she is an advocate for providing the basic
learning for all students. Having vocational opportunities is
also inportant. Students have different needs, so to address
that diversity, “we certainly can’'t |ose.”

SENATOR THOMAS asked for data on school funding of other states.

KATHY CARROW President, Kenai Peninsula Education Association,
with 600 nenbers, said she echoes Ms. Garcia's testinmony. “The
$5, 810 does bring us within $150 of the NEA target nunber, which
is $5,953.” The Kenai borough school district passed its budget
with a 12 percent cut of certified teachers. The renaining
teachers need to pick up for those |eaving. Teachers serve on a
nunber of different commttees, including staff devel opnent
pl anni ng, student interventions, and curriculum devel opnent.
“Having these professionals in the building to provide these
services is a benefit to all of the students, but as we |ose
t eachers, then those renmmining teachers need to pick
up..additional commttee work.” The large class size demands nore
time and inpacts effectiveness. There have been class sizes of
30 to 35, and that isn't the best for kids. She is concerned
about having the financial resources to provide good education
to the community’ s benefit. She appreciates the |egislation and
woul d I'i ke nmenbers to be open to increasing the BSA anount.

4:26: 37 PM

MARY HAKALA, Geat Alaska Schools GCtizen's Coalition, a
grassroots advocacy network, said nmenbers invest tinme and energy
by volunteering in schools. “W wurge you to invest in the
classroom” Go beyond PERS/ TRS and inflation, and go to where
the funding makes a difference at the classroom | evel. She noted
that the 600-student mddle school in Juneau has nine working
m croscopes. She asked for noney beyond nai ntenance fundi ng that
brings a breath of fresh air into the classroom

SENATOR THOVAS noved SB 1 from commttee wth individual
recommendations and attached fiscal note(s). There being no
obj ection, the notion carried.

The conm ttee adjourned at 4:29:27 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- April 3, 2007



